
From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Soil & Water Conservation Program
DNR.Soil and Water Conservation Districts staff 
DNR.SWC Staff
COVID procedures and FAQ
Thursday, October 22, 2020 3:58:56 PM COVID 
Joint Procedures October 2020.docx
 SWCD COVID-19 FAQs.docx

Good Afternoon,

Over the last few weeks, I’ve been working with Scott Edwards, NRCS State Conservationist and the
MASWCD to evaluate and update NRCS’ COVID procedures. Attached is the latest NRCS guidance on
office and field requirements that are effective today, October 22nd.  The guidance applies to USDA
offices and all employees in those offices. For districts not located in an USDA office, it is up to the
district board members to determine what policy to put in place for their office following state and
local guidance.

Also attached is a Frequently Ask Question document that the group developed. Most of the
questions came from district board members or employees. We can update this document if there
are similar questions coming in that are not addressed.

Scott offered to have someone from my staff be included on the email notifications of offices
impacted by COVID exposures that come from the state FPAC pandemic coordinator. I will have
someone assigned to monitor the office situations and keep the district coordinators informed. If
district board members or staff have questions about access the office, you will be able to contact
either your district coordinator or the district conservationist.

I feel overall district boards and staff have done well at keeping the districts operating and cost-
share dollars being obligated to cooperators. Thank you for all your efforts during this unusual time.
If you have further questions, please work them through your district coordinator.

Kurt Boeckmann
Director
Soil and Water Conservation Program
Missouri Department of Natural Resources
Office 573-751-7143
Kurt.Boeckmann@dnr.mo.gov

We’d like your feedback on the service you received from the Missouri Department of Natural Resources. Please consider
taking a few minutes to complete the department’s Customer Satisfaction Survey at
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/MoDNRsurvey. Thank you.
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This supplemental guidance will serve to further explain standard operating procedures as we move through the various phases of reopening.  As an office begins the process of moving between phases, there will be coordination with Missouri USDA’s State Pandemic Coordinator.  This coordination will include the opportunity to ask questions about the process and additional guidance will be provided. Missouri NRCS, SWCD Field Offices and All Partner Employees will follow the Farm Production and Conservation (FPAC) criteria established in the 05/19/2020, USDA Re-opening Playbook. (Link attached) Https://myfpac.usda.gov/Assets/myFPAC/business-center/homeland-security-division/pdf/summary-of-usda-reopening-playbook.pdf



Mask Usage

Masks are required in our USDA offices, including during all face to face interactions and in hallways, common areas and restrooms. If employees are alone in a private office or at their desk and separated from other employees by at least 6 feet, they do not need to wear a mask. Additionally, USDA requires customers to wear a mask to enter a USDA facility for an appointment throughout all phases of reopening, until further notice. 



Phase I Office Operation

· The Service Center must remain in Phase 1 Operational Status for a minimum of 14 consecutive days before consideration may be given to moving to the Phase 2.

· No more than 10 persons in the designated space while maintaining the 6 foot “Social Distancing” criteria at all times.

· Masks must be available for each employee who works on site. ALL employees are required to wear masks in all person to person interaction, this includes other Agency employees.

· Travel will be limited to Mission essential and time sensitive travel.

· All “Common Areas” will be closed and will not be used. i.e. break rooms, kitchens, etc.

· NO VISITORS or CUSTOMERS ARE ALLOWED IN THE OFFICE during Phase 1. Only persons employed by, or assigned to NRCS, Conservation District or State Employee, Partner Employee assigned to office will be permitted on site during Phase 1.

· If you must meet with a customer during phase 1 you should schedule a time to meet them away from the office and maintain all social distancing protocols.



Phase II Office Operation

· Offices will be notified of status change by Pandemic Coordinator and a conference call will be scheduled to discuss changes.

· Employees can increase to full capacity if the number of people in a single office space can maintain 6 feet of separation between employees.  

· Customers may return to offices by appointment only. 

· If customers arrive without an appointment, and you do not have a previous appointment scheduled, you can serve those customer on a first come first serve basis only allowing the max number of producers in the building that your approved plan specifies.

· Both employee and Customer must wear masks. If the producer refuses to wear a mask, they cannot enter the office. Plexi-glass barrier must be between the Producer and Employee. 

· Producers are not to be allowed in common areas or at the Employees desk, they must be served in the area designated in your approved plan.

· Be diligent in wiping down the work area where we serve the producer and the door handles, pens, etc. after each producer leaves. Sanitizing wipes are not available at this time, but you can use soap and water or bleach water.

Mission Essential Travel and Events

· Mission essential, time sensitive travel is defined as overnight travel to support operational matters that cannot be conducted remotely or deferred to a later date.

· Field work, including repair of FPAC IT equipment, is authorized provided mask, social distancing and proper hygiene and sanitization practices are followed. Field work requiring visits to Field Offices must be coordinated with the District Conservationist prior to the visit.

· In-person training does not meet the criteria of mission essential, time sensitive travel unless it is required to maintain a certification that enables an employee to complete their duties, and the certifying body has not granted extensions or remote opportunities. All in person certification training should be approved by State and/or Headquarters leadership prior to any individual attending the training. Training should not be approved if a location is in Phase 0 or Phase One and kept to an absolute minimum in Phase Two.

· Conferences and large gatherings (more than 50 people) present a high-risk situation at this time, do not meet the definition of mission essential, time sensitive travel and should be avoided until Phase 3 and should be approved by State Office prior to the person attending the event.



Travel and Training by Facility Status



		Phase

		Overnight Travel

		Local Travel/Field Work

		Local Training

		Large Gatherings



		Phase Zero

		Overnight travel to or from a location in Phase Zero is not permitted. Critical operational exceptions must be approved at the State or HQ level.

		Critically needed work only. All precautions must be followed. NRCS mission delivery field work will continue following

appropriate precautions.

		Conducting or attending training in a location in Phase Zero is not permitted.

		Attendance at conferences and trade shows in a Phase Zero location or while the attendee’s facility is in Phase Zero is not permitted.



		Phase One

		Overnight travel to or from a location in Phase One is not permitted. Critical operational exceptions must be approved at the State or HQ level.

		Work that cannot be deferred to Phase Two or later is permitted. All precautions must be followed. NRCS mission delivery field work will continue following

appropriate precautions.

		Conducting or attending training in a location in Phase One is not permitted.

		In person attendance at conferences and trade shows is not permitted.



		Phase Two

		Overnight travel to or from a location in Phase Two should be kept to an absolute minimum and must be approved at the State or HQ

level.

		Routine field work is allowed. All precautions must be followed.

		Conducting or attending training in a location in Phase Two is not permitted.

		In person attendance at conferences and trade shows is not permitted.



		Phase Three

		Overnight travel to or from a location in Phase Three must be for an operational need that cannot be deferred and must be approved at the State or HQ level.

		Routine field work is allowed. All precautions must be followed.

		Virtual training is preferred. Conducting training in a location in Phase Three is discouraged, but if essential, must adhere to FPAC mask, social distancing and hygiene requirement. If any of these conditions cannot be met, the

training should not occur.

		In person attendance at conferences and trade shows is not permitted. Exceptions must be approved at the State or HQ level.









Meeting and Field Day Additional Guidance

· The number of attendees cannot exceed 50 individuals.  

· Attendance must be deemed mission critical. 

· The events occur at locations other than the NRCS Service Center, preferably outside.

· Meeting space should be large enough to maintain social distancing and mask should be worn even while speaking.

· NRCS employees are not required to participate if health risks exist or conditions do not allow for safe operation.  

· If an employee feels uncomfortable participating in an agency or partner organized event, follow the established course of supervision to notify appropriate staff.

Field Visits

During field visits with producers be mindful that we are still to social distance and wear masks when meeting with producers and landowners. Continue to meet with producers in open spaces and avoid going into shops, vehicles or homes. The mask wearing requirement in the field will mirror the mask wearing requirements of that field office during a particular Re-Opening Phase.



Vehicle Usage and Occupancy

· NRCS employees and or SWCD employees traveling to site visits that require more than one employee may travel in a government vehicle with up to two people.

· Employees traveling in a vehicle with more than one person must a mask while in the vehicle.

· Time spent in the vehicle should be minimized.

· The interior of the vehicle will be cleaned with a disinfectant at the conclusion of the trip, or prior to employees switching sides in the vehicle.

· Employees are reminded that they should maintain social distancing when outside of the vehicle.

· The vehicle be operated without using the recirculated air feature and the windows open at least three inches to reduce accumulation of fine aerosol particles.

· The wearing of disposable gloves is encouraged, but not required.

· SWCD employees may still use the USDA vehicles for mission related travel but will follow the above guidance. 



SWCD Offices

SWCD offices that do not have NRCS employees co-located will follow state and local guidance or County Health Department ordnance for public office protocol. Additionally, the SWCD Board in Districts not located in an USDA office may establish additional requirements for their employees and customers to follow.  All SWCD employees who are currently working in NRCS offices will follow all FPAC protocols and guidelines while in the office or traveling with NRCS staff.



Employees Working Across Multiple Offices

Conservation employees, including NRCS, SWCD, State, and Partner Employees will follow the guidance of all USDA Offices.   If employee is required to travel to other offices for mission critical work, the following precautions should be followed.   Employee should schedule an appointment, wear mask at all times, limit exposure in the office and clean work area before and after.   Field Office should prepare a designated work area for visiting employee and limit interaction.   To limit the potential spread of COVID, traveling employee should only visit one office per day.  



Personal Travel and Requests for Leave

Please notify your immediate supervisor if you plan to travel outside of your normal commuting or work area. Employee may be required to telework upon return if they have traveled to an area with higher rates of COVID-19 cases. Because travel increases your chances of getting infected and spreading COVID-19, staying home is the best way to protect yourself and others from getting sick.  Use the following link to access CDC data. https://www.cdc.gov/covid-data-tracker/index.html



If employee travels outside of the United States, they will be required to self-quarantine for 14 days.  

During this 14-day period, take these steps to monitor your health and practice social distancing:

· Take your temperature with a thermometer two times a day and monitor for fever. Also watch for cough or trouble breathing. Use this temperature log to monitor your temperature.

· Stay home and avoid contact with others. Do not go to work or school.

· Do not take public transportation, taxis, or ride-shares. Keep your distance from others - 6 feet.



Operational Tracker

The operational tracker must continue to be filled out daily until an office reaches Phase 3.


SWCD COVID-19 FAQs  
Information for SWCD boards to use



1. Who sets the SWCD schedule for in-office work – DC or Board

a. The SWCD Board and the DC should work together to determine the in-office work schedule for SWCD employees within a UDA Service Center and also make sure it adheres to the USDA COVID-19 policy.  

2. Is SWCD staff required to report to their DC their day to day activities while teleworking vs. their immediate supervisors?

a. This should be a joint decision of the SWCD Board, SWCD staff and the DC as to whom they report their telework to and how often to report.

3. Do the SWCD employees count in the maximum 10 employees in the office (not all SWCD staff can telework?

a. Yes

4.  Do SWCD employees have to follow NRCS meeting attendance guidance of 10 or less?

a. Yes

5. [bookmark: _GoBack]Can NRCS tell SWCD employees not to come into the office if they have 1 NRCS employee in the office working (&/or no NRCS employees in office but are teleworking instead)

a. The SWCD Board and the DC should work together to determine the in-office work schedule for SWCD employees and also make sure it adheres to the USDA COVID-19 policy. 

6. Is it practical for NRCS to have SWCD cover office entire time and have all NRCS teleworking

a. This depends on the at-risk level of both SWCD and NRCS employees.  If there are both SWCD and NRCS employees that are not high risk, then they should share the office coverage schedule.

7. Is it okay for the DC to contact SWCD employees after hours (or any time) and ask about health conditions 

i. Yes, if there has been a potential exposure to COVID-19  

b. and suggest doctor visits or COVID testing

i. No, DC should never suggest testing or doctor visit

8. What about SWCD employees who have children where schools are closed or learning is virtual, is Administrative Leave a possibility

a. This is an SWCD Board decision.  With the access to MoSWIMS from outside the office, there may be some telework that an employee can do from home while also caring for children.  Boards should make decisions with the best flexibility possible

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. What restrictions do SWCD employees face after traveling – 

a. what distance traveled is considered out of the area. 

i. Check with your DC when you return.  Employee may be required to telework upon return if they have traveled to an area with higher rates of COVID-19 cases. Because travel increases your chances of getting infected and spreading COVID-19, staying home is the best way to protect yourself and others from getting sick.  Use the following link to access CDC data. https://www.cdc.gov/covid-data-tracker/index.html  

b. if must quarantine when return, for how long

i. 14 days

c. what if immediate family member has traveled out of local area

i. no work interruption unless family member shows symptoms or tests positive, then quarantine for 14 days

d.  If required to telework for how long

i. Until  end of quarantine

10. Can SWCD employees use NRCS vehicles during COVID restrictions – any procedures to follow?

a. Yes, Must follow USDA policy

i. 2 per vehicle maximum, 

ii. must wear mask if another employee in the vehicle

iii. wipe down seat, steering wheel and door handles when leave the vehicle or change drivers

iv. see USDA policy for more particulars

11. Why can’t SWCD Boards or FSA County Committees have their meetings in the office

a. Conference rooms and break rooms are closed according to USDA policy until Phase 3.  In Phase 2 visitors are allowed one at a time by appointment.   SWCD Board Members would be considered visitors so no in-office SWCD Board Meetings until Phase 3.   FSA County Committees are considered employees per FSA Policy and Guidelines therefore they are allowed in building to conduct official FSA business.    

12.   Stand alone SWCD offices not located in a USDA office having no NRCS employees are to follow what specific state guidance?

a. Whatever state or local guidance is in place for open businesses, number of people, etc.

13.    If the state of Missouri is not following required mask wearing, must SWCD employees wear masks when interacting with agency personnel or customer interaction?

a. Yes, is USDA policy

14. Due to a 1st order exposure for which that person needs to quarantine for 14 days and facility assumed contaminated & therefore only essential personnel in building until it is cleaned; who is considered essential personnel?  

a. If we close an office due to exposure, everyone vacates the building for 7 days from when the affected employee was last in the office, no one is allowed in; even to get their computer or personal belongings.  That is why people should always be prepared to gather everything in between the time they send up the exposure notice and when official guidance comes down. Official notification comes from the pandemic coordinator.

15. Board of Supervisors set policy & guidance, especially with COVID-19; for their employees. 

a. If your SWCD Board feel they need training in personnel policy they can contact their DNR coordinator

16. There is some concern about how well the offices are disinfected especially in areas where computers or desks may be used by more than one person such as shared NRCS computers or for SWCD staff like FOSA technicians that must use someone else’s computer to do their timesheet

a. With MoSWIMS access through the Internet, shared SWCD employees can do their timesheet or any financial or cost share entry that they need to do on their NRCS computer.

b. Wipes or bleach spray is available for concerned employees to wipe down their area before using it
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